Home Energy Loan Program



# CONTENTS

Introduction	ı
Why get a HELP Loan?	1
Am I Eligible?	2
The home being renovated must: The applicant must:	2
What are the terms for a HELP loan?	3
Eligible Help Projects & Rebates	4
Net-Zero Rebate	6
Application Process	7
Step 1: Initial Application & Approval	7
Step 2: Energy Audit, Funding Request and Contract Signing	8
Step 3: Request a Deposit (Optional)	12
Step 4: Instalment Request (Optional)	13
Step 5: Project Completion	14
Step 6: Loan Repayment	15
Provincial & Federal Incentives	16
Canada Greener Homes Program	16
SaskEnergy Residential Rebate Program	19
SaskPower Energy Assistance Program	19
Need help with HELP?	20

### INTRODUCTION

Saskatoon's Home Energy Loan Program (HELP) helps Saskatoon homeowners improve their homes' energy efficiency, install renewable energy, or reduce water use. Loans between \$1,000 and \$60,000 are available from the City for eligible retrofits that would be repaid over 5, 10, or 20 years through property taxes.

The Home Energy Loan Program is now offering rebates to eligible households to make even more energy retrofits that improve the energy performance of their homes. Rebates are available for homes that were built in 1990 or prior, and for income-qualified households. Find out more about HELP rebates on page 5 of this guide.

This guide provides details about the program including eligibility criteria, terms and conditions for HELP, the application process, and available rebates and incentives that can be stacked with the program.

Please review this guide before applying for the program.

# WHY GET A HELP LOAN?

A HELP loan provides a low-interest option to cover the costs associated with renovating your home for energy efficiency or renewable energy. The loan balance can be repaid early at any time, without penalty.

A HELP loan is attached to the property, not the homeowner. This means if you move before your loan is paid off, the new owner of that home can continue to make the loan payments as they will receive the benefit from the upgrades.<sup>1</sup>

An energy efficient home is more affordable in the long term as it leads to lower energy bills. It's also more comfortable and better for your health with fewer drafts and better air quality, and it is essential in reducing household greenhouse gas emissions in our community.

<sup>1</sup> The City does not require the HELP loan be repaid in full on the sale of the property. On sale of a property, the loan can be assumed by the new owner but this is to be negotiated between the buyer and seller.

# AM | ELIGIBLE?

Owners of single-family residential homes including detached homes, semi-detached homes and row housing within Saskatoon city limits are eligible for HELP.

#### The home being renovated must:

- Not have any outstanding or delinquent taxes
- Be a single-family residential home
- Be located within the City of Saskatoon
- · Be an existing home
  - new homes under construction are not eligible for the program

#### The applicant must:

- · Be an individual, not a business, association or corporate entity
- Be the owner of the home where upgrades are being installed
- Be in "good standing" regarding City of Saskatoon utility bills, taxes, and any other municipal charges

If you are already participating in a property tax deferral program with the City such as a lead line replacement loan, you are still eligible to apply for this program.

# WHAT ARE THE TERMS FOR A HELP LOAN?

The minimum loan to participate in the program is \$1,000. The maximum loan amount for this program is \$40,000, unless you can provide details that your project will reduce your homes energy consumption by 50% or more, then you can receive a maximum loan of \$60,000.

The City will help with modeling if you think your project will meet the criteria for a \$60,000 loan.

There is a \$500 administration fee to participate in the program. This admin fee will be waived for income-qualified households as defined on page 7.

Homeowners must schedule a pre- and post-project energy efficiency audit with a registered energy advisor on their home to participate in the program, find out more on page 8 of this guide.

Homeowners can choose the repayment term that best suits their needs between the options of 5, 10 or 20 years.

Repayment Term	5 Years	10 Years	20 Years
Interest Rate 2023	4.32%	4.20%	4.86%

Interest rates will be updated for the program on an annual basis, but only for new applicants that have not already signed a contract with the City. If you have already completed a project through HELP or signed a contract with the City, your rate will be fixed for the life of your loan.

# ELIGIBLE HELP PROJECTS & REBATES

Your EnerGuide home energy assessment will help identify which upgrades makes sense for your home. An energy efficient home is typically cost effective (because of reduced energy bills), comfortable, healthy, and reduces greenhouse gas emissions.

Eligible projects for this program are included in Table 1. Any home upgrades outside of this list are ineligible for a HELP Loan. To find out more about product specification eligibilities, visit saskatoon.ca/HELPspecs

Table 1 - List of Eligible Projects

Project Category	Eligible Projects
Energy Efficiency	<ul> <li>High-efficiency furnaces/boilers/central air conditioners*</li> <li>Window and exterior door replacements*</li> <li>Basement/attic/exterior wall insulation**</li> <li>Air sealing (e.g., weather stripping or caulking)</li> <li>Gas tankless water heaters/gas storage water heater/electric heat pump storage water heaters*</li> <li>Drain-water heat recovery systems</li> <li>HRV (heat recovery ventilation) or ERV (energy recovery ventilation) system installation*</li> <li>Smart Thermostats</li> </ul>
Renewable Energy	<ul> <li>Air-source heat pumps*</li> <li>Geothermal heat pumps*</li> <li>Solar water heater*</li> <li>Solar PV panels</li> <li>Solar inverter</li> </ul>
Water Conservation	<ul> <li>Low-flow toilet replacements*</li> <li>Low-flow fixture and faucet replacements*</li> <li>Irrigation control systems</li> <li>Permanently affixed rainwater catchment sized to hold 50 gallons or more</li> </ul>
Net Zero Renovation	<ul> <li>Canadian Home Builders Association (CHBA) Net Zero or Net Zero ready home renovation is designed, modelled and constructed to produce as much energy from on-site renewable energy systems (wind, solar, or geothermal) as it consumes on an annual basis. In other words: energy created – energy used = 0. A CHBA Net Zero Ready Home has the same energy performance as a Net Zero Home but the renewable energy system is not yet installed.</li> </ul>
Other	<ul> <li>Level 2 EV charging station system and installation costs</li> <li>Battery storage system (paired with renewable generation)</li> <li>Window glazing and embedded markers for birds</li> </ul>

 $<sup>^*</sup>Denotes\ products\ must\ be\ ENERGY\ STAR\ rated\ for\ local\ climate\ region\ or\ WaterSense\ Certified.$ 

<sup>\*\*</sup> When completing insulation upgrades the Program may allow for additional work to be included in your loan such as asbestos removal, mold remediation, exterior siding or drywall when required. These upgrades are only allowable with an insulation upgrade.

#### **HELP Rebates**

Your household is eligible for rebates if it is income-qualified or built in 1990 or earlier.

- Income-qualified households are eligible for all available rebates
- Homes built in 1990 or earlier are eligible for standard rebates

Table 2 - Rebate categories and values per item

Rebate Category	Rebate Value
Income-Qualified Rebates	
Programmable smart thermostat	\$180
Weather stripping	\$200
Air sealing	\$900
A low-flow toilet	\$200
Low-flow faucet aerators	\$15
Low-flow showerheads	\$25
Rainwater catchment for outdoor landscaping purposes	\$100
Window glazing and embedded markers for birds	\$130
Windows maximum 10 per household	\$120 per window up to max. of \$1,200/household
Exterior doors maximum 2 per household	\$100 per door up to max. of \$200/household
HRV	\$400
Drain water heat recovery	\$300
Furnace	\$450
Boiler	\$450
Tankless water heater	\$350
Rooftop solar	\$3,500
Insulation exterior wall, attic, and basement	Wall: <b>\$1,000</b> Attic: <b>\$900</b> Basement: <b>\$1,000</b>
Heat pump	\$4,000
Electric Vehicle (EV) charging station	\$600
Solar water heater	\$1,000
A bonus incentive to encourage Net Zero Ready or Net Zero home renovations.	\$10,000

Note: The maximum loan is the amount <b>after</b> all applicable	ò
HELP rehates have been applied to the project	

Rebate Category	Rebate Value	
<b>Standard Rebates</b> for Income-qualified and Homes Built Prior to 1990		
Insulation exterior wall, attic, and basement	Wall: <b>\$1,000</b> Attic: <b>\$900</b> Basement: <b>\$1,000</b>	
Air sealing	\$200	
Heat pump	\$4,000	
Electric Vehicle (EV) charging station	\$600	
Solar water heater	\$1,000	
A bonus incentive to encourage Net Zero Ready or Net Zero home renovations.	\$10,000	

#### **Net-Zero Rebate**

A \$10,000 rebate is available for homeowners who plan to renovate their home to Net Zero or Net Zero Ready.

A Canadian Home Builder Association (CHBA) Net Zero Home is designed, modelled and constructed to produce as much energy from on-site renewable energy systems (wind, solar, or geothermal) as it consumes on an annual basis. In other words:

#### energy created - energy used = 0

A CHBA Net Zero Ready Home has the same energy performance as a Net Zero Home but the renewable energy system is not yet installed.

This rebate is eligible to homeowners who participate in the CHBA Towards Cost-Effective Net-Zero Energy Ready Residential Renovations program.

If you are interested in a Net-Zero renovation, contact the  $\underline{\sf HELP}$  program coordinator for more information.

To find out more about Net Zero homes, check out our Net Zero Homes webpage.

# APPLICATION PROCESS

The application process for HELP includes six steps.



#### **STEP 1:** Initial Application & Approval

As the property owner, you complete the *Initial Online Application* form by filling out your:

- Property address, to ensure your home is in Saskatoon
- · Names of each property owner on title
- Contact information of each property owner on the title
- Type of project you are interested in completing
- If you are applying as a low-income household, please submit your Notice of Assessment (NOA) as proof of income. We will accept your NOA from 2020, 2021 or 2022 (whichever year is the lowest). A Notice of Assessment is required for each member living in the home that is contributing to the household income.

Once this form has been received by the City, it will be reviewed against <u>eligibility criteria</u>. You will be notified by email if your application has been approved, or denied and why.

0

Participants that have not submitted their funding request with EnerGuide audit results, contractor quotes with required specifications, and a planned project details form within six months of the initial application being approved may have their enrollment in the program terminated.

Admin fees will be waived for income-qualified applicants, based on 2.5X Statistics Canada's Low Income Cut-Off (LICO).

If your total household income is below the limits in the table, based on the number of people in your household, you could have the admin fee waived for the program.

If this applies to you, include your proof of income with your application to avoid paying the \$500 admin fee.

Number of people living in your home	Total household income limit to qualify for waived admin fee
1	\$57,315
2	\$71,350
3	\$87,718
4	\$106,500
5	\$120,788
6	\$136,233
7 or more	\$151,675

# **STEP 2:** Energy Audit, Funding Request and Contract Signing

#### 2a. Energy Audit

After the City notifies you that your application is approved, you will be required to book an <u>EnerGuide home energy assessment</u> with an Energy Advisor registered by Natural Resources Canada. This is also known as an energy audit.

- Energy audits can be booked directly with an <u>EnerGuide Certified business</u> or, to
  be reimbursed for the cost of the audit, book by going to <u>Canada Greener Homes</u>
  <u>Grant</u>, completing their online application process, and requesting an audit. Natural
  Resources Canada is currently offering up to \$600 for EnerGuide audits. Once you
  request an audit, the auditor will contact you to schedule a time.
- The assessment will include an in-home assessment of your entire home (basement-to-attic) to assess your home's insulation, heating, and cooling systems, and detect any air leaks or drafts.
- The Auditor will provide you with a Renovation Upgrade Report with recommendations for specific improvements and an EnerGuide rating based on your home's current energy performance.
- The City will use your EnerGuide rating label information for tracking the program's success.
- For more information on registered energy advisors in Saskatoon, check out our Energy Audit fact sheet.

If you completed an EnerGuide Assessment before applying for the program, you can use that assessment for HELP if it is for the same home you want to upgrade, and it was completed within the past 2 years.

Keep your receipts once you pay for your energy audit(s). This is an eligible project expense which can be reimbursed to you directly by the City upon completion of your project, and included in your HELP loan.

Assessments completed for a different home cannot be used for the program.

#### 2b. Funding Request

You have six months from the date you received your approval email for your HELP application to complete a funding request. If you do not send this information within six months, you may be removed from the program.

Using the customized recommendations provided through your EnerGuide audit, decide which improvements you wish to make based on the eligible projects for the program.

Next, you will need to collect price quotes with the correct <u>program specifications</u> for your project from the contractor(s) of your choice. If you are doing a project yourself, you will need to add up the cost of the materials for your project. The City is not responsible for the quality of work performed by contractors or DIY projects.

You can request the City pay a contractor deposit on your behalf (see step 3 of the application process for details on this), or choose to pay deposit to your contractor out of pocket. You can be reimbursed for deposits at the end of your project, but only if you follow the program process and have fulfilled the requirements of your contract signed with the City. This includes submitting all final invoices to the City and providing the results of the final energy efficiency home evaluation within 30 days of the final audit date.



Please do not make deposits or perform any retrofit work before you have completed the second step in the application process and a Deferral Agreement between you and the City has been signed. HELP can not be used for any home upgrades retroactively.



**Not sure who to collect quotes from?** Review our pre-vetted contractor list for ideas and see this factsheet for tips on choosing a contractor.

Once you've completed the Energy audit and decided on your home upgrades you are ready to fill out the <u>Funding Request Form</u>. This form is two parts, and includes an online form and a <u>Planned Project Details PDF</u>. Fill out the <u>Planned Project Details PDF</u> first, as this will need to be attached to the online <u>Funding Request Form</u>.

#### While completing these forms you will need to provide the following:

- Planned Project Details PDF which includes a list of upgrades you plan to complete.
  - Certain HELP upgrades are required to be ENERGY STAR or WaterSense certified to be eligible for funding. Your contractor will need to include the product specifications on your quote. If you are not using a contractor, then you will need to ensure the products you use are ENERGY STAR or WaterSense certified.
- Details, product specification sheets, and cost estimates for each upgrade based on your contractor quote(s).
- All EnerGuide audit documents including the Pre-retrofit EnerGuide Label (LBL), Renovation Upgrade Report (RUR), the Homeowner Information Sheet (HOIS), and receipt of payment for your EnerGuide audit if you would like to include it in your loan amount.
- What repayment term and interest rate you would like for your loan (see <u>page 3</u> of this guide for the repayment terms and interest rates).
- Your estimated project start and end dates.
  - Your contractor(s) should be able to help estimate the timeline for your project or provide an estimate yourself if not using a contractor. However, your project must be completed within two years of signing the HELP Deferral Agreement.

Quotes must be approved by the program coordinator; only projects that meet the <u>required specifications</u> will be approved. All products and invoices must match the approved quote for it to be paid through a HELP loan.

For assistance filling out your <u>Funding Request Form</u> and <u>Planned Project Details PDF</u> or if you have any questions regarding your energy audit, project eligibility requirements or general retrofit questions reach our to our Summerhill Energy Coaches:

#### **Energy Coaches**

**\** 1-888-834-1889

energycoachsk@summerhill.com



#### **2c. Contract Signing**

After the City has reviewed and approved your funding request form, you will be required to sign a HELP Deferral Agreement which is the contract between you and the City for your HELP loan.

Once you sign and return the HELP Deferral Agreement, the City will review and sign the contract and notify you to proceed with your home upgrades.

Once the contract is signed, the City will apply a lien to your property and you can proceed with requesting a deposit payment to your contractor, hiring contractors or purchasing materials to renovate your home. Changes to the project plan will not be permitted after the Deferral Agreement has been singed unless special circumstances deemed reasonable by the City apply. In this situation, an amendment to the Deferral Agreement will be required.

After contract signing, you have 24 months to complete the construction of your home renovation project. If your project is expected to take longer than two years, you may risk being denied financing.

In the event the Property Owner receives any government funding, rebate, grant or other money to offset the costs of the eligible projects, the Property Owner is required to make a payment equal to the amount received to their property taxes to reduce the amount owing to the City.

A maximum contingency of 5% of the overall loan amount from the final quoted values in the *Planned Project Details PDF*, may be added to a participant's loan once the project has been completed. The final loan amount including this contingency can not exceed the maximum allowable loan of \$40,000.00.

The 5% contingency can be used to cover costs that may arise for the participant and were not included in the original project plan such as:

- Unforeseen repairs (e.g., drywall, siding, etc.)
- Structural reinforcements associated with solar installations

- Electrical upgrades for solar installations, EV charging or another upgrade
- Minor additions to a project (e.g., adding a smart thermostat, a low-flow toilet, air sealing, etc.)

A cost differential for a project that is greater than 5% of the overall original quoted loan value will be the sole responsibility of the participant.

Quotes must be approved by the program coordinator; only projects that meet the required specifications will be approved. The <u>specifications</u> of the final product and invoice must match the approved quote and be verified during the post-energy audit for it to be paid through a HELP loan.

# Will my project require a building permit from the city?

Some eligible projects, like solar panel installations, basement renovations, exterior wall insulation, changing the size of an existing window or door space, and any structural upgrades or modifications will require a building permit in addition to your HELP application.

Other projects, like furnace upgrades, heat pump installations, and window and door upgrades will not require a building permit as long as the existing building or structure is not altered in anyway.

It is your responsibility to determine if you need a building or plumbing permit.

Consult with your chosen contractor or review the <u>Building and Development</u>

<u>Permits webpage</u> for more information. Failure to secure building permits for structural changes to your home could delay payment to your contractors or result in being denied financing. Applicable building permits **must be closed** prior to the City paying out your final loan amount to contractors.

## **?** What is a property tax lien?

A property tax lien is a legal claim that the City registers against the title of your home. The property tax lien remains on your home until the HELP loan is repaid in full. Once your loan is repaid the lien will be removed.

It gives the City the ability to collect on the balance of the HELP loan and any outstanding property taxes should the property owner default on the agreed upon loan payment and/or the annual property taxes.

A lien will show up during a property title search and may affect your ability to get additional credit which is tied to your property. For example, a line of credit which uses your home as collateral or an additional mortgage.

See this factsheet about property liens for more information.

#### **STEP 3: Request a Deposit** (Optional)

After you have signed a deferral agreement with the City, you can request payment of a contractor deposit on your behalf.

You can request up to 30% of the Total Final HELP Loan amount on your Schedule A - Planned Project Details PDF to be paid to a contractor. Your deposit request amount can be either 30% of your total approved loan amount or the total sum of your contractor deposits, whichever is less.

A Deposit Request is optional. If you prefer, you can pay the contractor deposit out of pocket and request a reimbursement for this deposit at the end of your project, after we have received your project completion documentation. You can not request a deposit if you have already paid the contractor.

A link to this form will be sent to you after your have signed a deferral agreement with the City.

# 1 The City's payment terms are net 30.

This means it could take up to a month for your contractor to receive a deposit payment after you have requested one. This could delay the start date of construction for your project. We can not rush deposit payments.

#### **STEP 4: Instalment Request** (Optional)

If your project includes multiple home upgrades, you could be eligible for an instalment payment. Instalment payments are an advance on a portion of your loan. The instalments are paid to your hired contractor(s) directly for work that's been completed only. You cannot make an instalment request for a do-it-yourself project.

To collect an instalment payment, one or more of your project upgrades must be completed in full, and you need to complete an <u>Instalment Request Form</u>. You must attach a final invoice for the work completed with this form.

The instalment request cannot exceed your total estimated project value from your funding request form and are subject to approval from the City.

Instalment payments can not exceed 90% of the total cost of the project. The remaining 10% of the project will not be paid until the entire project has been completed in full and all of the required documentation has been submitted to the City, including the results of the post-energy audit.



If you receive an instalment payment from the City, interest begins to accrue immediately, and is based on the effective interest rate determined by your chosen repayment term from your funding request form.

#### For example:

Jane is using a HELP Loan for multiple upgrades to her home. She is replacing her furnace, adding exterior wall insulation, and installing an EV charging station. The total estimated cost of her renovations is \$30,000 based on her *Funding Request Form*. Her insulation contractor completes their portion of the renovation within two months of her signing the property owner agreement, but her renovation project won't be complete for another six months.

To pay the insulation contractor for work completed, Jane collects a final invoice from her insulation contractor for that portion of the project. The final cost of her insulation upgrade is \$15,000 and an instalment payment for this amount can be made to the insulation contractor only.

Jane completes the *Instalment Request Form* and attaches the final insulation contractor invoice.

The HELP Program Coordinator reviews Jane's instalment request and processes the payment to her insulation contractor.

#### **STEP 5: Project Completion**

#### When your project is complete you will need to do the following:

- 1. Collect all the final invoices and receipts of payment from your contractors or organize the receipts if you did a project yourself. Invoice or receipt details, product specifications and your Energy Auditor's signature must be included on your *Final Project Details PDF*.
- 2. Fill out the *Final Project Details PDF* in advance of your final energy assessment. Your energy advisor will need to initial and sign this document when they are completing your post project assessment.
- **3.** Schedule your post-retrofit home energy assessment with your Energy Advisor. The Advisor will verify the improvements and provide a new EnerGuide rating for your home.

Once those three steps are complete, submit the <u>Project Completion Form</u> online and attach your contractor invoices or receipts, the *Final Project Details PDF* and your new EnerGuide rating label.



You must submit your *Project Completion Form* **within 30 days** of the date of your post-project energy evaluation, unless special circumstances deemed reasonable by the City apply.

The City will review this documentation then apply your eligible rebates to your outstanding loan amount, reimburse you for any upfront costs, and pay your chosen contractors listed in the *Final Project Details PDF* directly.

#### **STEP 6: Loan Repayment**

Once your project is complete, your contractor has been paid, rebates have been applied, and you've been reimbursed for any deposits, do-it-yourself work, or for the cost of the EnerGuide audits, the City will update your HELP Deferral Agreement with your repayment obligation details.

The Deferral Agreement will outline the terms of your loan, what the current loan repayment will be for the upcoming tax year, and what changes will be made to your Tax Instalment Payment Plan Service (TIPPS) payments (if you are enrolled in TIPPS). Additionally, you will receive a notice from the City annually in December, which will provide an update on your taxes owing, including your loan balance and payments for the upcoming year. If you pay your property taxes annually, your loan repayment will occur monthly.

If you'd like to register for TIPPS, fill in the  $\underline{\text{TIPPS application form}}$  and submit it to revenue@saskatoon.ca.



At any time throughout the term of your HELP loan, you can repay the full outstanding balance or make lump sum payments, without penalty, to clear the loan from your property.

# What if I sell my home before the HELP loan is paid off?

On sale of a property with a HELP loan, the loan can be assumed by the new owner of the property or paid off in full by the seller. This is to be negotiated between the buyer and seller.

The City does not require the HELP loan to be repaid in full on the sale of the property. However, if you are selling a property with a HELP loan, you must notify the City of the sale within 14 days and provide contact information for your new residence.

A lien will show up on a title search for the property if someone is looking to purchase that property. But as a courtesy, you should disclose the HELP loan to interested buyers.

For more information on buying or selling a property with a HELP loan, see this factsheet.

# PROVINCIAL & FEDERAL INCENTIVES

The Home Energy Loan Program is stackable with incentives from other levels of government, but these incentives require residents to apply for them separately, in addition to the HELP application.

Residents interested in HELP could be eligible for these incentive programs:

#### **Canada Greener Homes Program**

The <u>Canada Greener Homes Grant</u> provides grants for Canadian homeowners up to \$5,000 for qualifying energy efficiency and renewable energy installations and up to \$600 for EnerGuide evaluations. The grant program is expected to be offered until 2028 with up to 700,000 grants available.

On June 17, 2022 the Canada Greener Homes Program expanded from a grant program to a grant and loan program.

The Canada Greener Homes Loan offers Canadians interest-free financing in addition to the Canada Greener Homes Grant to help eligible households complete major retrofits recommended by an energy advisor.

#### Who is eligible for the Canada Greener Homes loan?

The federal loan program is available to:

- Canadian homeowners who are renovating their primary residence.
- Eligible applicants who are applying to Canada Greener Homes Grant.
- Active applicants at the pre-retrofit EnerGuide evaluation stage with the Canada Greener Homes Grant.

#### What are the terms for a Canada Greener Homes loan?

The loan terms for this program are as follows:

- One loan is available per eligible property and homeowner.
- The loan can only be used to finance eligible products and installations that are part of home retrofit recommended by an energy advisor and eligible for a greener homes grant.
- The maximum loan is \$40.000.
- The minimum loan is \$5,000.
- The repayment term is 10 years, at 0% interest.
- The loan is an unsecured personal loan based on an individual's approved credit rating.

#### How is the Canada Greener Homes Loan different or the same as HELP?

There are many similarities between HELP and the Canada Greener Homes Loan with some key differences. The similarities and differences are provided in the table below.

#### How can a homeowner maximize both programs?

Depending on the upgrades a homeowner wishes to do, it may be worthwhile to access a Canada Greener Homes loan for some upgrades such as a solar installation and use HELP for other upgrades such as a furnace replacement or air conditioning installation.

If a homeowner is using HELP for their loan and not using the Greener Homes loan, they can use grants received from the Greener Homes grant program to pay down their HELP loan. However, they cannot access HELP rebates without using a HELP loan.

Table 1. Comparison of Canada Greener Homes Loan and HELP

	Canada Greener Homes Loan	Home Energy Loan Program
Eligible Applicants	Homeowner (no renters/tenants)	Homeowner (no renters/tenants)
Eligible Property Types	<ul> <li>Single family residential properties (includes detached, semi-detached and row housing)</li> <li>Mixed-use buildings (residential portion only)</li> <li>Low-rise multi-unit residential buildings</li> <li>Indigenous governments or organizations</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Single family residential properties (includes detached, semi-detached and row housing)</li> <li>Condominiums or units in buildings with more than three units are not eligible</li> </ul>
Maximum Loan	• \$40,000	• \$40,000 or up to \$60,000 for deep energy retrofits or Net Zero home renovations
Minimum Loan	• \$5,000	• \$1,000
Administration Fee	• \$0	• \$500
Repayment Term Options	• 10 years	• 5, 10, or 20 years
Interest Rate (for 2022)	• 0%	• 1.68%, 2.23%, 2.72%
Underwriting Criteria	<ul> <li>Personal loan, evaluated on credit history</li> <li>Loan tied to the individual and reported on credit rating</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Lien applied to property, evaluated on property tax payment history</li> <li>Loan tied to the property, not the individual and not reported on personal credit rating</li> </ul>
Instalment Payments	• N/A	<ul> <li>Participants can receive an instalment payment to their contractor for a portion of their project that is completed, beneficial for projects with multiple upgrade types</li> </ul>
Payment for Projects	Loan is paid to program participant directly	<ul> <li>Payments are made to contractors directly with reimbursements for deposits or energy audits provided to participants</li> </ul>
Upfront Costs/Deposits	• Up to 15% of loan can be accessed up front to pay for deposits	• Up to 30% of total approved loan or total sum of contractor deposits, whichever is less.
Low-Income Household Benefits	• N/A	<ul><li>Waived admin fee</li><li>Broader rebate package</li></ul>

The eligible project types for both programs are similar, however, HELP provides a wider array of home upgrades that Saskatoon residents may need such as furnace replacement, HRV or air conditioner installation, EV charging installation or installation of water conservation items.

A detailed list of the eligible project types is provided in the table below:

Table 2. Canada Greener Homes and HELP eligible projects

Eligible Project Item	HELP	Canada Greener Homes Grant & Loan
Air conditioning unit (central air only)		
Air sealing	•	•
Air source heat pump		
Battery storage system		
Boiler replacement	•	
Drain water heat recovery system	•	
EV charging station		
Furnace replacement	•	
Geothermal heat pump		
HRV		
Irrigation control system		
Insulation (attic, basement, exterior walls)		
Low-flow toilets and fixtures		
Rainwater catchment/storage		
Smart thermostats		
Solar PV and inverters	•	•
Solar hot water		
Window and exterior door replacement	•	•
Water heater replacement (gas, tankless or electric)	•	only heat pump water heaters
Window glazing for birds	•	

#### How to receive the grant or apply for the loan:

Register for the program through the Government of Canada <u>online portal</u> and select your energy advisor from the drop down list during registration.

Once you have registered for this program you can apply for HELP but cannot proceed with any renovations until after the pre-project energy audit is complete.

#### SaskEnergy Residential Rebate Program

The <u>Residential Equipment Replacement Rebate Program</u> provides rebates on energy efficient eligible units such as furnaces, boilers, heat recovery ventilators, and hot water heaters.

The program is only available through a participating SaskEnergy Residential Network Member. Please reach out to your local contractor who will apply on your behalf.

#### **SaskPower Energy Assistance Program**

The <u>SaskPower Energy Assistance Program</u> is for income qualified residents based on Statistics Canada's <u>Low-Income Cut-Off (LICO)</u>, where Home Energy Advisors will come to your home and complete a walkthrough. They'll upgrade your home with free energy-efficient items that'll help you save money and energy.

The Home Energy Advisors will also give you simple everyday tips to help keep your energy use down, helping you save up to \$230/year on your utility bills! Energy and water saving items include: smart thermostat, ENERGY STAR LED light bulbs, smart power strips, high-efficiency showerheads, aerators (kitchen and bathroom), and drying racks.

### **Need help with HELP?**

For application forms, factsheets and general information about the program visit <u>saskatoon.ca/HELPHome</u>

If you need assistance with the application process or have any questions about your EnerGuide audit, product specifications or which projects are eligible for HELP you can email <a href="mailto:energycoachsk@summerhill.com">energycoachsk@summerhill.com</a> or call 1-888-834-1889.

If you have questions about the program you can email homeenergyloanprogram@saskatoon.ca or call 306-986-1658.

